
 
 

 

 

Board of Directors Meeting 
 

 

December 15
th

, 2016 

2:00 p.m. 

 

Administration Office of the 
Lower Thames Valley Conservation Authority 

 

1. Call to Order 
2. Adoption of Agenda 
3. Disclosure of Conflicts of Interest 
4. Approval of Previous Meeting MinutesΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧ.......   3 

4.1)   Board of Directors Meeting ς October 20, 2016ΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧ.  3 

5. Business Arising From the Minutes 
6. Presentations and Delegations 

6.1)   Ice Management, Winter Outlook ς Jason Wintermute 
7. Business for ApprovalΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧ..ΧΧΧ..   7 

7.1) Budget vs Revenue and Expenditures for the period ended November 30, 2016ΧΧΧ.ΧΧΧΧΧ  7 
7.2) .ƻǳƴŘŀǊȅ !ŘƧǳǎǘƳŜƴǘΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΦΦ 10 
7.3) Joint Health & Safety Committee Minutes, November 3, 2016ΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΦΧΧΧΦ 17 
7.4) Ska-Nah-Doht Advisory Committee Minutes ς November 24, 2016ΧΧΧΧΧΧΧ..ΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΦΦ 20 

8. Business for InformationΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧ.ΧΧ.... 31 
8.1) ²ŀǘŜǊ aŀƴŀƎŜƳŜƴǘΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΦ 31 
8.2) wŜƎǳƭŀǘƛƻƴǎ ŀƴŘ tƭŀƴƴƛƴƎΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΦΦ 34 
8.3) /ƻƴǎŜǊǾŀǘƛƻƴ !ǊŜŀǎΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧ 46 
8.4) /ƻƴǎŜǊǾŀǘƛƻƴ {ŜǊǾƛŎŜǎΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΦΦ 51 
8.5) /ƻƳƳǳƴƛǘȅ wŜƭŀǘƛƻƴǎΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧ 54 
8.6) Conservation Authorƛǘȅ 9ŘǳŎŀǘƛƻƴΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΦΦ 59 
8.7) ²ƘŜŀǘƭŜȅ ¢ǿƻ /ǊŜŜƪǎ !ǎǎƻŎƛŀǘƛƻƴΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΦΦ 62 
8.8) DaΩǎ wŜǇƻǊǘΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧ 63 

9. CorrespondenceΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΦΧΧΧΧΧ 66 
9.1) Carolinian Canada Recognizes Conservation HeroesΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧ 66 
9.2) National River Conservation Award Winner ΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧ 68 
9.3) Canadian Cancer Society, This Muds for You Race Event, thank you letterΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧ 69 
9.4) Message from the Honourable Kathryn McGarry, MNRFςPassing of the Invasive Species Act.. 70 
9.5) Elgin Phragmites Working Group, Request for SupportΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧ. 71 
9.6) /hΩǎ ŎƻƳƳŜƴǘǎ ƻƴ ά! ²ŜǘƭŀƴŘ /ƻƴǎŜǊǾŀǘƛƻƴ {ǘǊŀǘŜƎȅ ŦƻǊ hƴǘŀǊƛƻ нлмс-нлолέ under separate cover 
9.7) COΩs comments on Phosphorus Reduction  under separate cover 

10. Other Business 
11. Adjournment  

A G E N D A 



 

2 
 

  



 

3 
 

4. Approval of Previous Meeting Minutes 

4.1) Board of Directors Meeting ï October 20, 2016 

 



 

4 
 

  



 

5 
 

 

 

 



 

6 
 

 

  



 

7 
 

7. Business for Approval 

7.1) Budget vs Revenue & Expenditures for the period ended November 30, 2016  
 
Background: 
 
Review the 2016 Budget to the Revenue and Expenditures for the 11 months ended November 30th, 2016.  
 
Current Situation: 
 
EXPENSES 

 
2016 2016 BUDGET 2016 ACTUAL $ VARIANCE 

 
BUDGET NOV PROJECTED TO NOV 30 TO PROJECTED 

WATER MANAGEMENT 
    

FLOOD CONTROL STRUCTURES 152,044 139,373 165,092 25,719 

EROSION CONTROL STRUCTURES 31,438 28,818 9,672 (19,146) 

FLOOD FORECASTING AND WARNING 267,026 244,774 123,768 (121,006) 

TECHNICAL STUDIES 37,689 34,548 33,481 (1,067) 

PLANNING & REGULATIONS 207,139 189,877 204,337 14,460 

WATERSHED MONITORING (PGMN) 64,162 58,815 21,776 (37,039) 

SOURCE PROTECTION 24,900 22,825 27,033 4,208 

THAMES MOUTH DEBRIS REMOVAL 20,000 18,333 590 (17,743) 

     Water Management Subtotal 804,398 737,363 585,749 (151,614) 

     CONSERVATION & RECREATION PROPERTIES 
    

CONSERVATION AREAS 488,532 447,821 583,884 136,063 

     COMMUNITY RELATIONS AND EDUCATION 
    

COMMUNITY RELATIONS 166,047 152,210 120,902 (31,308) 

CONSERVATION EDUCATION 90,578 83,030 70,163 (12,867) 

SKA-NAH-DOHT VILLAGE 172,223 157,871 191,655 33,784 

     Community Relations & Education Subtotal 428,848 393,111 382,720 (10,391) 

     CONSERVATION SERVICES/STEWARDSHIP 
    

CONSERVATION SERVICES (FORESTRY) 39,268 35,996 18,181 (17,815) 

CHATHAM-KENT GREENING PROJECT 849,124 778,364 907,929 129,565 

PHOSPHORUS REDUCTION 315,852 289,531 324,149 34,618 

COMMUNITY TREES INITIATIVE 0 0 0 0 

     Conservation Services/Stewardship Subtotal 1,204,244 1,103,891 1,250,259 146,368 

     
CAPITAL/MISCELLANEOUS 

    ADMINISTRATION BUILDING 
REPAIRS/UPGRADES 

100,000 91,667 11,090 (80,577) 

UNION GAS CENTENNIAL PROJECT 0 0 0 0 

EMPLOYMENT PROGRAMS (FED/PROV) 0 0 0 0 

     Capital/Miscellaneous Subtotal 100,000 91,667 11,090 (80,577) 

     
 

3,026,022 2,773,853 2,813,702 39,849 

  



 

8 
 

REVENUE 

 
2016 2016 BUDGET 

 
2016 

ACTUAL 
$ VARIANCE 

 
BUDGET 

NOV 
PROJECTED 

  TO NOV 30 
TO 

PROJECTED 

      
GRANTS 675,651 619,347 * 914,048 294,701 

GENERAL LEVY 1,339,478 1,339,478 ^ 1,339,478 0 

DIRECT SPECIAL BENEFIT 200,000 200,000 ^ 200,000 0 

GENERAL REVENUES 717,393 657,610 * 943,618 286,008 

FOUNDATION GRANTS & REVENUES 5,000 4,583 * 7,422 2,839 

RESERVES 88,500 81,125 * 0 (81,125) 

 
          

CASH FUNDING 3,026,022 2,902,143 
 

3,404,566 502,423 

      
OTHER 0 0 

 
770,200 770,200 

TOTAL FUNDING 3,026,022 2,902,143   4,174,766 1,272,623 

*-based on a 11 of 12 month proration of the budget 

^-based on 100% of budget 

 
Discussion: 
 
Expenses 
Water Management expenses are below budget as there are several items still outstanding and due to a relatively 
uneventful year to date in terms of flooding issues. 
 
Conservation area expenses are above budget due to several items, the more significant of which are:  
 

¶ creation of the Manager of Conservation Lands and Services position; 

¶ retaining Municipal Enforcement Unit to monitor and enforce conservation areas;  

¶ expenses related to a very successful Water festival; 

¶ costs for increased hours of operation of the CM Wilson gatehouse.   
 
Community Relations and Conservation Education are below budget due to staff income and expenses being included in 
the Conservation Services - Phosphorus Reduction area resulting from the McGregor Creek - Great Lakes Agricultural 
Stewardship Initiative (GLASI) Program.  SKA-NAH-DOHT Museum and Village is over budget due to two large 
maintenance projects ς replacement of part of the palisade walls and re-barking a portion of one of the longhouses, 
funded from additional revenue sources. 
 
Consistent with previous budget analysis, Conservation Services expenses are greater than budget due to several 
factors: 

¶ higher tree sales and planting with most of the expenses being incurred in the spring and summer months; 

¶ ŦǊƻƴǘ ƭƻŀŘŜŘ Ŏƻǎǘǎ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ ǇǳǊŎƘŀǎŜ ŀƴŘ ƛƴǎǘŀƭƭŀǘƛƻƴ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ ŜǉǳƛǇƳŜƴǘ ŦƻǊ ǘƘŜ WŜŀƴƴŜǘǘŜΩǎ /ǊŜŜƪ D[!{L ǇǊƻƎǊŀƳ; 

¶ ŀƴ ŀŘŘƛǘƛƻƴŀƭ ƎǊŀƴǘ ǘƻǿŀǊŘ ǘƘŜ WŜŀƴƴŜǘǘŜΩǎ /ǊŜŜƪ D[!{L tǊƻƎǊŀƳ ŀƴŘ ǘƘŜ Ŏƻǎǘǎ ǊŜƭŀǘŜŘ ǘƻ ǘƘŀǘ ƎǊŀƴǘ 

¶ the McGregor Creek GLASI Program noted in Community Relations and Education above.   
 

Note:  There are ϷмпоΣллл ƻŦ ŎŀǇƛǘŀƭ ŀǎǎŜǘ ŜȄǇŜƴŘƛǘǳǊŜǎ ŦƻǊ ǘƘŜ WŜŀƴƴŜǘǘŜΩǎ /ǊŜŜƪ D[!{L tǊƻƎǊŀƳ ƴƻǘ ƛƴŎƭǳŘŜŘ ƛƴ ǘƘƛǎ 
amount that are being capitalized and amortized over the life of the assets. 
 
Capital/Miscellaneous is below budget as $144,000 of the expenditures for the Administration Building are being 
capitalized and amortized over the life of the assets. 



 

9 
 

Revenue 

Grant income is greater than the prorated budget because more grants have been received than budgeted: McGregor 
Creek-Great Lakes Agricultural Stewardship Initiative (GLASI); GLASI best management practices; and the timing of 
grants invoiced. 
 
Levy revenue matches budget as all levies have been invoiced and recognized as revenue with only a small balance 
outstanding in accounts receivable. 
 
General Revenue is higher than the expected due to several factors: 

¶ planning and regulations fees are slightly higher than budget; 

¶ Conservation area revenues are higher than expected due to the contributions from a successful Water Festival, 
a small increase in camping revenues and several on time contributions for various events and programs; 

¶ Conservation education is slightly below budget and SKA-NAH-DOHT Village is well above budget due to the 
money received to replace part of the palisade walls and re-bark part of one of the longhouses; 

¶ Conservation Services and the Chatham Kent Greening Project are higher than expected due to increased tree 
sales and several large projects such as Clear Creek that were not budgeted for. 

 
Foundation Grants and Revenues are higher than budget due to conservative nature of the budgeted amount. 
 
Reserves are zero as this account is used to balance the accounts at year-end if expenses are greater than revenues.  
 
The large Other Revenue item is the result of the generous donation of two parcels of land. 
 
 
Recommendation: 
 
That the Board of Directors receive the Budget vs Revenue and Expenditures report for the period ended November 
30, 2016. 
 



 

10 
 

7.2) Boundary Adjustment, Proposed Changes to LTVCA Eastern Boundary 

Date:  November 25, 2016 
 
Memo to:   Chair and Members, LTVCA Board of Directors 
 
From:  Don Pearson, General Manager 
 
Subject: Proposed changes to LTVCA Eastern Boundary 
 
Background: 
The Upper Thames River (UTRCA) and Lower Thames Valley Conservation Authorities (LTVCA) are seeking to clarify their 
mutual boundary within the Municipalities of Strathroy-Caradoc and Middlesex Centre.  The precise division between 
the jurisdiction of the two Conservation Authorities has been less than clear historically, due in part to the language of 
the Order in Council, OC-1699/47 that created the UTRCA:  
 

άΧ¢ƘŜ ¦ǇǇŜǊ ¢ƘŀƳŜǎ wƛǾŜǊ /ƻƴǎŜǊǾŀǘƛƻƴ !ǳǘƘƻǊƛǘȅ ǿŀǎ ŜǎǘŀōƭƛǎƘŜŘΣ ƛƴŎƭǳŘƛƴƎ ǘƘƛǊǘȅ ƳǳƴƛŎƛǇŀƭƛǘƛŜǎ ǿƘƻƭƭȅ ƻǊ 
ǇŀǊǘƭȅ ǿƛǘƘƛƴ ǘƘŜ ǿŀǘŜǊǎƘŜŘ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ ¢ƘŀƳŜǎ wƛǾŜǊ ŀōƻǾŜ ǘƘŜ ŎƻƴŦƭǳŜƴŎŜ ƻŦ 5ƛƴƎƳŀƴΩǎ /ǊŜŜƪ ǿƛǘƘ the Thames 
wƛǾŜǊΣ ōǳǘ ƴƻǘ ƛƴŎƭǳŘƛƴƎ ǘƘŜ ¢ƻǿƴǎƘƛǇǎ ƻŦ /ŀǊŀŘƻŎΧέΦ   
 

Additionally, the easterly boundary of the LTVCA has historically been represented on official mapping produced and 
published by the Province of Ontario, as being consistent with the watershed of the Thames River below the confluence 
ƻŦ 5ƛƴƎƳŀƴΩǎ /ǊŜŜƪΦ  !ǎ ŀ ŦǳǊǘƘŜǊ ŎƻƳǇƭƛŎŀǘƛƻƴ ǘƘŜ ƳŀǇǇŜŘ ōƻǳƴŘŀǊƛŜǎ ǊŜŦƭŜŎǘ ŀƴ ƘƛǎǘƻǊƛŎŀƭ ŎƻƴŦƭǳŜƴŎŜ ƻŦ 5ƛƴƎƳŀƴΩǎ 
Creek with the Thames River, which no longer exists.  Consequently, that portion of the former Township of Caradoc, 
above the confluence has been treated as being outside of the jurisdiction of both Conservation Authorities.  Similarly, 
portions of the municipality of Middlesex Centre have been treated as being practically within both Authorities, resulting 
in joint letters being written in regard to certain property based issues. 
 
Present situation: 
Conservation Authority staff met with the CAO and Staff of the Municipality of Strathroy-Caradoc to discuss options for 
resolving the discrepancies in jurisdiction.  As a result of these discussions, it was recommended to extend the UTRCA 
jurisdiction into Strathroy-Caradoc in accordance with the original description of its watershed.  It was also 
recommended to define the boundary between the Upper and Lower Thames watersheds within the Municipality of 
Middlesex Centre through the Village of Delaware according to a distinct cultural feature (Longwoods Road).  This 
process was initiated at the Municipality of Strathroy-Caradoc Council meeting on November 21, 2016, with the 
adoption of the following motion: 
 

THAT: Council approves of the proposed boundary adjustment and directs the Conservation Authorities to initiate 
the process to amend the boundary between the Upper Thames River Conservation Authority and the Lower 
Thames Valley Conservation Authority with the Ministry of Natural Resources and Forestry.   

 
The Council Report with associated mapping has been attached for your information and reference. 
UTRCA Staff are in discussion with the Ministry of Natural Resources and Forestry to confirm the process for moving 
forward. 
 
Discussion: 
 
There is no impact on the LTVCA from the expansion of UTRCA into Strathroy-Caradoc.  With respect to Middlesex 
Centre, there would be a slight reduction in municipal area within the jurisdiction of LTVCA which will have the effect of 



 

11 
 

reducing its Current Value Assessment (CVA) apportionment.  The impact of this adjustment will likely not be felt until 
2018 once the Ministry of Natural Resources and Forestry completes a recalcǳƭŀǘƛƻƴ ƻŦ ŜŀŎƘ ƳǳƴƛŎƛǇŀƭƛǘƛŜǎΩ /±!Φ 
 
¢ƘŜ ŀŘǾŀƴǘŀƎŜ ƻŦ ǘƘƛǎ ŀŘƧǳǎǘƳŜƴǘ ƛǎ ǘƻ ǇǊƻǾƛŘŜ ƎǊŜŀǘŜǊ ŎƭŀǊƛǘȅ ƻƴ ǘƘŜ ƭƻŎŀǘƛƻƴ ƻŦ ŜŀŎƘ /ƻƴǎŜǊǾŀǘƛƻƴ !ǳǘƘƻǊƛǘȅΩǎ 
jurisdiction and regulatory authority. 
 
It is anticipated that a joint meeting of the UTRCA and appointed municipal representatives or other suitable process will 
occur early in the New Year.  As the easterly LTVCA boundary is effectively defined by the westerly UTRCA boundary, 
there is no role for LTVCA member municipalities outside of those who are also members of the UTRCA.  It would be 
useful, however to pass a supporting resolution of the LTVCA Board to facilitate the successful outcome of this process. 
 
 
Recommendation: 
That the LTVCA Board supports the expansion of the UTRCA into the Municipality of Strathroy-Caradoc, and further 
supports the location of the Authority Boundary division within Middlesex Centre as being Longwoods Road from the 
Thames River Bridge, easterly to the watershed divide between Dingman and Sharon Creeks. 
 

  



 

12 
 

 



 

13 
 

 

 



 

14 
 

 

 



 

15 
 

 

 



 

16 
 

  



 

17 
 

7.3) Joint Health & Safety Committee Minutes, November 3, 2016 

 
LOWER THAMES VALLEY CONSERVATION AUTHORITY 

 
JOINT HEALTH AND SAFETY COMMITTEE 

MINUTES 
 

November 3, 2016 
 
 
A meeting of the Lower Thames Valley Conservation Authorityôs (LTVCA) Joint Health and Safety Committee 
(JHSC) was held November 3, 2016.  Committee members present were: T. Casier, R. Dysarz, V. Towsley 
and A. Vriends.   
 
 
Ministry of Labour Mandatory Training 
 
At this time, all staff have been trained either through a power point presentation and videos or HRdownloads.  
New staff are trained using HRdownloads.  There have been several updates and new requirements in 2016.  
Current staff will be required to complete refresher courses and the new required courses through 
HRdownloads by the end of 2016.  This will ensure that all staff have received the same training moving 
forward. 
 
 
Several employees have commented on the use of ears buds while working.  A Headphone/Ear Buds at Work 
Policy is being drafted. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Site inspections of Big Bend, Skunkôs Misery, Feasby, E. M. Warwick, Crane and Dutton Dunwich were 
conducted.  See complete Workplace Inspection Recording Forms for details. 
 
 
ITEMS NOTED IN RED and BOLD are considered to need immediate attention. 



 

 

 



 

19 
 



 

7.4)  Ska-Nah-Doht Advisory Committee Minutes ï November 24, 2016 

 

 

 

Ska-Nah-Doht Advisory Committee 

 

A meeting of the Ska-Nah-Doht Advisory Committee was held at the Resource Centre in Longwoods Road Conservation 
Area at 2:00 P.M. on Thursday, November 24, 2016.  The following members were in attendance: D. McKillop, G. Bogart, 
D. Fairbairn, D. Fallon, B. Bruinink and D. Pearson. 
 

1. Minutes of the Last Meeting 
 

1. D. McKillop - D. Fallon 

Moved that the minutes of the September 22, 2016 meeting be approved. 
 

   CARRIED 
 

2. Business for Approval 
 

2.1)  5 Year Strategic Plan Review 
 

2. G. Bogart - D. McKillop 

Moved that the committee recommends to the LTVCA Board that the 5 Year Strategic Plan 2017-2021 be 
accepted as edited. 

 

   CARRIED 
 

2.2)  Ska-Nah-Doht Fund 
 

Ska-Nah-Doht Fund total is $23,690.15. 
 

3. G. Bogart - D. Fallon 

Moved that the committee receive the report for information. 
 

   CARRIED 
 

2.3)  Annual Policy Review 
 

Three policies are scheduled for review - #2. Finance, #5. Interpretation & Education, and #6. Research.   
 

4. D. Pearson - B. Bruinink 

Moved that the committee review the 3 policies at the first meeting of 2017. 
 

   CARRIED 
 

3. Business for Information 
3.1)  Education Programs and Environmental Symposium 
 

M I N U T E S 



 

21 
 

3.2)  Community Museum Operation Grant (CMOG) 2015\2016 
 

3.3)  Preliminary 2017 Budget Draft 
 

5. D. Fallon - B. Bruinink 

Moved that the committee recommends to the LTVCA Board that the draft budget, in regard to the village, be 
accepted as presented. 

 

   CARRIED 
3.4)  Taste of Fall Review 
 

3.5)  Ska-Nah-Doht Recognition Program 
 

3.6)  Nominations for Ontario Volunteer Awards Program 
 

6. D. Pearson - D. McKillop 

Moved that Mason Sands and Liam Sands be nominated for the Youth Award. 
 

   CARRIED 
 

3.7)  Upcoming 2016 Events 
 

7. G. Bogart - D. Fallon 

Moved that agenda items 3.1, 3.2, 3.4, 3.5 and 3.7 be received for information. 
 

   CARRIED 
 

5. Other Business 
 

None 
 

6. Next Meeting Date 
 

8. D. Fallon - D. McKillop 

Moved that ǘƘŜ ŎƻƳƳƛǘǘŜŜΩǎ ŦƛǊǎǘ ƳŜŜǘƛƴƎ ōŜ¢ƘǳǊǎŘŀȅΣ aŀǊŎƘ мсΣ нлмт ŀǘ н ǇΦƳΦ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ [ƻƴƎǿƻƻŘǎ wŜǎƻǳǊŎŜ 
Centre. 

 

   CARRIED 
 

7. Adjournment 
 

9. D. Pearson - G. Bogart 

Moved that the meeting be adjourned 
 

   CARRIED 
 
 

_____________________________________ 

Don Fairbairn 
Chair 
 
Recommendation: That the Board of Directors approve the recommendations from the Ska-Nah-Doht advisory 

committee.  



 

22 
 

 

Ska-Nah-Doht Village and Museum  

 5 Year Strategic Plan 2017 -2021  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by: 
K. Mattila 
Editors: 
L. Chelchowski 
E. Pupinski 
 
Presented to: 
Ska-Nah-Doht Village Advisory Committee 
November 2016 
 

 
 
 
 



 

23 
 

 
 
Table of Contents 
 
Table of Contents  .............................................................................................. 1 

 
Introduction  ....................................................................................................... 2 

 
Our Mission  ....................................................................................................... 2 

 
Our Vision ........................................................................................................... 2 

 
Our Values ........................................................................................................... 2 

 
Governance  éé...................................................................................................  3 
 
Strategic Goals......................................................................................................  3 

. 
 1. Community Input  ...............................................................................    3 
 
 2. Raise Awareness  .............................................................................     3 
 
 3. Capital Projects  .................................................................................... 3 
 
 4. Stable Funding Operations  ................................................................   3 

 
Conclusion ............................................................................................................. 3 
 
Appendix A ............................................................................................................. 4-5 
 
Appendix B............................................................................................................. 6-9 

  



 

24 
 

 
 

 

Introduction: 
As we review the Ska-Nah-Doht 3 Year Strategic Plan 2014-2016 we can celebrate the success of the Strategic Goals 
identified in the plan: 
V Solidifying our Mission, Vision and Value statements  
V Collaborated with the community stakeholders on the War of 1812 Diorama Project 
V Recruited new Community members to the Advisory Committee 
V Maintained dynamic programs including co-hosting the 2016 Environmental Symposium with the Thames Valley 

District School Board and 120 secondary school student participants 
V Secured the Community Museum Operating Grant (Ontario Ministry of Culture) 
V Continued as caretakers of the collections to museum standards  
V Acquired funding for the Heritage Build Project  - 2016 Phase , resulting in new outdoor village exhibits  
V Created new 3 year Exhibit Plan and Social Media Plan 
V Increased attendance at special events (numbers will be presented at the meeting). 
V Recruited First Nations students on 2/3 summer grant positions 
V /ƻƴǘƛƴǳŜŘ ƛƴǾƻƭǾŜƳŜƴǘ ƛƴ ŜǾŜƴǘǎ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ ŎƻƳƳǳƴƛǘȅ ƛƴŎƭǳŘƛƴƎ ƭƻŎŀƭ tƻǿ ²ƻǿΩǎ ŀƴŘ {ǳƴŦŜǎǘ ό[ƻƴŘƻƴύ 
V Increased revenues of the Turtle Gift Shop (numbers will be presented at the meeting). 

 
At the same time, we recognize there is work to be done to continue the legacy of Ska-Nah-Doht.  Areas identified 
require attention: 
Á Decreasing attendance in school programs 
Á Infrastructure, specifically aging buildings 
Á Alternative funding support systems for continuity and diversification of revenue sources: 

Corporate partners and donors 
Membership program 
Signature revenue-generating events 
Increasing paid attendance of existing events 

Á Recruiting members of the First Nations to Advisory Committee 
Á Engaging and representing diversity of our community 
Á Supporting staff professional development 

 
  

Our Mission Statement 

Ska-Nah-Doht Village and Museum is an interactive museum that engages the public in the 

preservation and presentation of the local First Nation history, through experiences both on-site and 

in the community.   

Our Vision Statement 

Ska-Nah-Doht Village and Museum is a community leader in collection and preserving local history, 

while faithfully interpreting the Haudenosaunee -- people of the longhouse. 

Our Values 

Innovation: We are leaders in heritage interpretation through research and experimentation. 

Inclusivity: Our museum is for the whole community; families, educators, researchers, visitors 

  both local and through tourism. 

Stewardship: We are committed to preserving important cultural resources. 

Excellence: We strive to meet the highest standards of the cultural heritage profession. 

 



 

25 
 

We were ambitious with our 2014-16, but are pleased with the outcomes achieved. We are now in a good position to 
review and prioritize the above list for our next 5-year planning cycle. In 2017 Ska-Nah-Doht will be entering its 44th year 
since officially opening in September 1973.  The Ska-Nah-Doht 5 Year Plan 2017-2021 will be a guide to achieving our 
next milestones in an attainable manner. 
 

Governance: 
Ska-Nah-Doht is owned and operated by the Lower Thames Valley Conservation Authority (LTVCA). The Village Advisory 
Committee will meet, discuss and make recommendations to the LTVCA Board based on the Mission and Vision. The 
Board will approve and act on the recommendations of the Advisory Committee, supporting and directing the staff on 
actions to further the goals of the Strategic Plan. 

 
Strategic goals: 
1.  Community input 
Ã The Village Advisory Committee will assist the LTVCA Board, staff and the Lower Thames Valley Conservation 

Foundation with a visioning process in 2017 followed by a Feasibility study for Longwoods/Ska-Nah-Doht. 
Ã Actively recruit First Nations to fill positions on Village Advisory and sub-committee. 
 

2. Raise awareness 
Current programming 
Ã Complete phase 2 of the Heritage Build Project in 2017. 
Ã Celebrate Canada 150, featuring the success of the Heritage Build Project in 2017. 
Ã Continue to execute on 2016-2018 Exhibit Plan (Appendix A). 

o Review and draft continuation of the plan for 2019-2021. 
Ã Continue to execute on 2016-2021 Social Media Plan (Appendix B). 

Future Programming 
Ã Develop an Environmental Heritage program for 2017-18 school years, based on the presentation at the 

Environmental Symposium co-hosted with the Thames Valley District School Board in October 2016. 
Ã Secure funŘƛƴƎ ǘƻ ōǊƛƴƎ ƛƴ άOwls of North Americaέ ǘǊŀǾŜƭƭƛƴƎ ŜȄƘƛōƛǘ ŦǊƻƳ wƻȅŀƭ hƴǘŀǊƛƻ aǳǎŜǳƳ ƛƴ нлму ό{ŜŜ 

Capital projects below). 
Ã Investing in staff development through recognized conferences and programs such as those offered by Ontario 

Museum Association or the Canadian Museum Association. 
 

3.  Capital projects  
Ã Museum/Resource centre redevelopment (dependent on Feasibility Study) 
Ã Address the challenges of collection storage. 
Ã Create space to accommodate travelling exhibits by 2018. 
Ã Design an expanded gift shop in 2017. 
 

4. Stable funding operations 
Ã Continuing to build a financially stable organization by aggressively pursuing funding programs and grants. 
Ã Developing a Signature Fundraising Event by 2018. 
Ã Increasing revenues through greater paid attendance and by actively pursuing donations. 

  



 

26 
 

Appendix A 
Ska-Nah-Doht Village and Museum 
Exhibit Plan 
March 2016 
 
 
 

 
Ska-Nah-Doht Village and Museum is committed to providing high-quality visitor experiences for persons of all ages and 
abilities. This plan outlines exhibits for the next 3 years, including permanent exhibits, temporary exhibits and travelling 
displays. 
 
Ska-Nah-Doht Village and Museum will adhere to our Mission and Vision statements as well as all Museum policies. We 
will take into account the Ska-Nah-Doht Accessibility Plan 2013 that features measures to ensure the best possible 
access to the Museums exhibits and programs in a manner that promotes dignity, independence, integration and equal 
opportunity.  The Museum, owned and operated by the Lower Thames Valley Conservation Authority (LTVCA), must 
adhere to the Policies of the LTVCA. The Ska-Nah-Doht Village and Museum is located in Longwoods Road Conservation 
Area (LRCA) and must also adhere to the rules and regulations of LRCA. 
 
This plan addresses the exhibit space currently located in Museum/Resource Centre but does not disregard the Village 
site, the Heritage Log Cabins and/or the 155 acre parklands of Longwoods, especially when developing programs and 
education for the exhibits. 
 
Year 1 ς άCommunity Collecǘƛƻƴǎέ exhibit  
(June 2016) 
!ƴ ŜȄƘƛōƛǘ ŦŜŀǘǳǊƛƴƎ ŘƻƴŀǘŜŘ ŎƻƭƭŜŎǘƛƻƴǎ ŦǊƻƳ ǘƘŜ aǳǎŜǳƳΩǎ ƘƻƭŘƛƴƎǎΦ aŀƴȅ ƻŦ ǘƘŜǎŜ ŀǊŜ ŦŀƳƛƭȅ Řƻƴŀǘƛƻƴǎ ǘƘŀǘ ǊŀǊŜƭȅ Ǝƻ 
ƻƴ ŘƛǎǇƭŀȅΦ ¢Ƙƛǎ ŜȄƘƛōƛǘ ǿƛƭƭ ƛƴŎƭǳŘŜ ƛǘŜƳǎ ǎǳŎƘ ŀǎ ǘƘŜ wƻƴ ²ŀǘǘǎ ŀǊǘƛŦŀŎǘ άǿƘŜŜƭέ ŀƴŘ ǘƘŜ ²ŀƭǎƘ ŎŀǎŜΦ ²Ŝ ŜȄǇect these to 
draw attention to the exhibit and open the door for a dialogue on collecting. 
 
Promoted on social media, we will invite donors to extend the invitation to family and friends, while ensuring we have 
an opportunity to donate financially to the Museum in a convenient setting.  
 
This small-budget project requires a new coat of paint on case(s) and display boxes. Staff may be needed to re-hinge 
drawer system and assist with mounting framed artifact cases. Exhibit space will have to be shifted to accommodate 
accessibility and must be located on the main floor. 
 
Years 2 and 3 ς άCƛǊǎǘ bŀǘƛƻƴǎ ϧ bŜǿ /ƻƳŜǊǎέ exhibit ς Phase 1 featuring medicinal plants 
 (June 2017); άCƛǊǎǘ bŀǘƛƻƴǎ ϧ bŜǿ /ƻƳŜǊǎέ exhibit ς Phase 2 featuring conflict and resolution 
(June 2018) 
Years 2 and 3 work as complementary phases. A large-budget exhibit, the two-year period will require grant-based 
funding, including securing funding through Canada 150. Funding will provide much-needed support like audio-visual 
equipment, computers and interactive display screens. New cases will also be needed to accommodate the new 
technology. 
 
  



 

27 
 

άCƛǊǎǘ bŀǘƛƻƴǎ ϧ bŜǿ /ƻƳŜǊǎέ Exhibit ς Phase 1 featuring medicinal plants 
This exhibit will showcase First Nations and their role in assisting the New Comers in the New World. As soon as contact 
was made the First Nations introduced many new things; the use of furs, instructing which animals and plants to eat for 
survival but it is the introduction to natural medicinal plants that saved their lives. 
 
Phase 1 will showcase medicinal plants found right on site. The case will have live specimens and change seasonally. The 
exhibit will make good use of the Carey Carolinian Arboretum and Trail system and its information. For example, the 
signage on the trail already includes First Nation medicinal use. It will be incorporated into educational material and 
promoted to teachers and educators, in addition to special interest groups and the general public. 
 
άCƛǊǎǘ bŀǘƛƻƴǎ ϧ bŜǿ /ƻƳŜǊǎέ Exhibit ς Phase 2 featuring conflict and resolution 
Phase 2 of the exhibit will bring the First Nations & New Comers relationship into the present. A Research & 
Development team consisting of Ska-Nah-Doht staff, First Nations and Non-Native community leaders will take on this 
difficult theme. To be leaders in this undertaking, the team will be using interactive elements in the exhibit, including 
social media. It will be promoted to teachers and educators, as well as to the general public.  
 
The end product will be an exciting and educational approach that we expect will gain positive reaction and interest 
from the public and the media. 
  



 

28 
 

Appendix B 
Ska-Nah-Doht Village and Museum 

Draft 5 Year Social Media Content Plan ς 2016-2021 
 

Current state:  As of June 2016, Ska-Nah-Doht has a webpage on the LTVCA website, its own Facebook page 

and a Twitter account that is inactive. We view this as a significant opportunity to engage teachers, 

community members and tourism to garner media interest in the Village and Museum activities 

 

Principles:  Maintain up-to-date Village and Museum information on all websites and social media sites, 

including:  

Events ς both pre- and post-event information  

School programs 

Timely and relevant media topics 

Use of hash tags for social media engagement 

 

Success measures: 

5ŜǾŜƭƻǇ ōŀǎŜƭƛƴŜ Řŀǘŀ ǘƘǊƻǳƎƘƻǳǘ нлмс ŦƻǊ ǿŜōǎƛǘŜΣ CŀŎŜōƻƻƪ ŀƴŘ ¢ǿƛǘǘŜǊΦ ¦ƴŘŜǊǎǘŀƴŘƛƴƎ ΨǎƘŀǊŜΩ ŀŎǘƛǾƛǘȅΣ 

click through rates and repeat visits will help us to better understand our engagement with various audiences 

and help us to tailor social media strategy moving forward.  

 

Audiences: 

Teachers 
Top objectives 
 

¶ Individual research on school program offering 

¶ Booking school programs 

¶ Education material for in-class learning 
 

Top obstacles to site use  
 

¶ LƴŦƻǊƳŀǘƛƻƴ ŀǾŀƛƭŀōƭŜ ƻƴ ǇǊƻƎǊŀƳǎ ƛǎƴΩǘ ǎŜŀǊŎƘŀōƭŜ 

¶ Few hand-outs and resource material for in-class use (not customizable) 

¶ Unable to book online ς must be done via email or phone call 

 

School-age youth 

Top objectives 
 

¶ Just-in-time information for school reports, including video, info graphics 
and interactive tools 

¶ Variety of engaging media that can be easily shared 

Top obstacles to site use  
 

¶ Outdated information 

¶ Slow system without search functions 

¶ Not interactive or shareable 

 
  



 

29 
 

Content schedule and inventory 
Principles of content creation and use ς will require attention and regular updates which may be executed by summer 

students and co-op student placements.  

 

Content  Audience Priority Update frequency  Description  
Educational 
programs 

Teachers High Quarterly Detailed 
descriptions of 
programs ς 
include photos 
and social media 
tags from 
previous classes 

In-class resources Teachers Medium Quarterly Job aids 
Curriculum 
content 
Educational 
support 
resources 

Educational 
resources 

School-age 
youth 

High Monthly Text and photos 
Info graphics 
Videos  

Events General public High Rotating schedule of 
upcoming and future 
events 
 

Dates and 
descriptions 
Discounts for 
advance 
purchase  
Photos from 
events past 
Testimonials 
from previous 
events 

Advanced research 
resources 

Researchers Medium Annually Collections 
available for 
research, 
including photos 
and shareable 
media types 

 

Twitter and Hash tags ς Principles 

Develop baseline for hash tag references that can be measured across various social media platforms.  

¶  #Ska-Nah-Doht 

¶  #SND 

¶  #Longwoods 
 

  



 

30 
 

Listening program:  

What to follow  Specific to you or your organization 

BTB members 
 

Increase our audience 

HPMMN Increase our audience 

Board of education for TVDSB and 
other local boards 
 

 

LTVCA  

UTVCA  

Museum association  

Local tourism and special interest 
groups 

Needs more research to understand this 
audience and identify relevant groups 

 

Which Platforms for what goals: 

Platform  Purpose and Strategy Priority  

Website Easy teacher booking High ς for September 2017 

Facebook ²ƘŀǘΩǎ ¦ǇΗ ¦Ǉ-coming Start now Weekly ς Daily 

Twitter 
 

In the now ς happening fast  ASAP - Daily for events and 
Weekly/Monthly for information 

Snap chat ς pictures & videos In the now ς happening even 
faster 

New media for staff ς to do for 
2017-18 

Look into other new social 
media: 

Youth market Research adding by next Social 
Media Plan review 

Instagram New audience Research needed 

YouTube 
 

Increase use of this media Start a.s.a.p. 

 

More Comments/ Notes: 
 

 
 
 
 

  



 

31 
 

8. Business for Information 

8.1) Water Management 

Flood Forecasting and Operations 

There have been no significant events from a Flood Forecasting and Operations perspective since the last 
Board of Directors meeting in October.          

Flood Control Structures 
 

Wet blade treatment for brush removal in the Indian-McGregor Creek Diversion Channel has been put off until 
next year as potential contractors did not return quotes in time.  
 
Ice Management ï Winter Outlook 

 
Information provided as a Presentation. 
 

Low Water Response Program 

 
The LTVCA participates in the Provincial Low Water Response Program as part of a team made up of local 
stakeholders and agency staff charged with managing the local response to drought conditions.  Low Water 
Conditions are determined based on several indicators including; 3 month rainfall, 18 month rainfall and 
monthly flows in the watercourses.  From last October until March and again from July to August, the region 
was in a Low Water Level One condition.  In September, the Low Water Level One Condition was lifted as 
precipitation and Thames River flows had improved.  But in October, monthly average river flows had the 
region re-entering a Level 1 Low Water Condition.  In November, river flows had recovered enough to not 
require a Low Water Condition, but a rainfall deficit is indicative of a Low Water Level 1 Condition.  Therefore, 
The LTVCA will end 2016 under a Low Water Level 1 Condition.  The socio-economic impacts of a Low Water 
Condition are lessened at this time of the year as the primary water users in the region are agricultural 
ǇǊƻŘǳŎŜǊǎ ǿƘƻ ŀǊŜƴΩǘ ǳsing significant amounts of water at this time of the year for irrigation purposes.  A 
report of local watershed conditions as they relate to the program is generated on an as needed basis, 
typically at the beginning of every month during the summer and fall.  Those reports are not currently posted 
online but are available upon request. 
 
Water Quality Monitoring 

 
Typically, the Provincial (Surface) Water Quality Monitoring Program (PWQMN) program only collects samples 
between April and November at 11 stations (8 per month) on watercourses throughout the Lower Thames 
watershed.  Starting earlier this year, a Ministry of the Environment and Climate Change (MOECC) grant 
allowed us to supplement this sampling so that 21 locations were being monitored per month.  As the 
PWQMN sampling year has ended, sampling at the full 21 station is now being funded by the MOECC grant.  
Work is also ongoing to install an automated water quality sampler on an additional municipal pump drain. 
 



 

32 
 

Surface water quality monitoring also continues in the Jeanettes Creek watershed as part of our Great Lakes 
Agricultural Stewardship Initiative (GLASI) project. 
 
Another contract is in the works with the province for additional water quality monitoring associated with 
wetlands.  Refer to the report in the Conservation Services section.  
 
The last of the water quality sampling for 7 Provincial Groundwater Monitoring Network (PGMN) wells was 
completed last week.  This program is designed to sample ambient groundwater conditions throughout the 
watershed and is not targeted at drinking water.  There are no PGMN wells in the Dover Township area.          
 
Thames River Clear Water Revival  

 
Work continues on the Thames River Water Management Plan.  There was a Steering Committee meeting held 
on December 2nd.  A draft final set of recommendations has been reviewed by the Steering Committee and 
members are now taking them back to their respective administrations to ensure that they can be signed off 
on by all parties.  The TRCWR will be sending a formal letter to Environment and Climate Change Canada 
seeking clarification around the long term status on the Thamesville automated water quality station and 
expressing its support for long term stable funding for the site.   
 
Source Water Protection 

 
There are some staffing changes going on in the Source Water Protection program.  Michelle Fletcher, the 
current Source Protection Project Coordinator, is moving on and taking over the Aquatic Biologist position at 
the Upper Thames River Conservation Authority.  Jenna Allain will be taking over the Project Coordinator 
position at the beginning of January.  Jenna has been with the AǳǎŀōƭŜ .ŀȅŦƛŜƭŘ /ƻƴǎŜǊǾŀǘƛƻƴ !ǳǘƘƻǊƛǘȅΩǎ 
Source Water program for 8 years and has been coordinating their program for the last 4 years.  Katie Ebel has 
been hired as a short-term Risk Management Official in order to handle the start-up risk management 
workload the Source Protection Region is now responsible for having contracted with the member 
municipalities for the service. She started November 14th. 
 
The Clean Water Act had provisions for reducing the size of the SPC once the Source Protection Plans had 
been approved.  The Thames-Sydenham and Region Source Protection Region (TSR SPR) has submitted its 
recommendations for restructuring and is waiting for approval from the MOECC.  Some delays have occurred 
as a change of Chair is also occurring and it was felt that these two changes needed to be coordinated.  Under 
the restructuring there will be one municipal representative for Chatham-Kent, Essex and Elgin.  Prior to the 
reduction the Chatham-Kent seat had been vacant for some time.  As the person in the Elgin/Essex seat has 
been a very active member of the SPC, both Chatham-Kent and Essex were asked if they would be willing to 
have the existing Elgin/Essex member represent them until the seat next comes up for replacement in late 
2017.  Both municipalities agreed to this through council. 
 
The MOECC is working on revising the Technical Rules for Assessment Reports pertaining to surface water 
intakes. A provincial working group was established to discuss and make recommendations.  The 
recommendations are grouped in the following categories: 1) Intake Protection Zones (IPZs) delineation; 2) 
Intake Protection Zones vulnerability scoring; 3) Consideration of Climate Change impacts on IPZs; and 4) 
Consideration of the uncertainty level determined for IPZs on SPP policy decision making.  These 
recommendations, if translated into technical rules, will not replace the existing prescribed methods or 



 

33 
 

approaches in the Rules but will allow for more flexibility to the SPAs to adopt other technical approaches that 
reflect the local characteristics and concerns of the drinking water systems.  Further details can be provided 
upon request. 
 
In order to facilitate Source Water Protection annual reporting by provincial ministries, municipalities, 
conservation authorities and other agencies, the MOECC is working on annual reporting requirements and 
standardized forms for annual reporting.  A guidance and rationale document was presented at the last SPC 
meeting together with drafts of the reporting forms.  They can be found in the SPC agenda online.       
 
This month, the MOECC sent out applications to the Source Protection Regions requesting the work plan and 
associated budgets for the next fiscal year.  TSR SPR staff are working on this package and expect to have it 
submitted by the end of December.        
 
Information Technology 

There have been no significant ŘŜǾŜƭƻǇƳŜƴǘǎ ŀǊƻǳƴŘ ǘƘŜ [¢±/!Ωǎ LƴŦƻǊƳŀǘƛƻƴ ¢ŜŎƘƴƻƭƻƎȅ upgrades since the 
last Board of Directors meeting in October.   
 
 

 

  



 

34 
 

8.2)  Regulations and Planning 

Planning and Regulations Policies and Operation Guidelines 
 
Very few comments have been received to date on the Policy document.  A comparison table was done up by 
staff to review what actually was changing from what we currently do to what is proposed in the new 
document (attached).  Minor edits are being made as a result of staff reviewing the overall document and a 
revised Policy along with the comparison table will be sent out to our member municipalities, various agencies 
ŀƴŘ bDhΩǎ ŀǎ ǿŜƭƭ ŀǎ ǇƻǎǘŜŘ ƻƴ ǘƘŜ /ƻƴǎŜǊǾŀǘƛƻƴ !ǳǘƘƻǊƛǘȅΩǎ ǿŜōǎƛǘŜ ŦƻǊ ǇǳōƭƛŎ ǊŜǾƛŜǿ and comments.  Once 
further comments have been reviewed by staff and noted and/or incorporated, meetings with interested 
municipalities will take place, with future open houses planned to take this back out to the community at a 
later date.   
 
 
Regulations Enforcement 
 
One enforcement site inspection has taken place since the last Board of Directors meeting. 

One new violation (infilling of ravine spur) has been identified, with no inspection having taken place yet, and 
no notice of violation issued to date.  This violation is in conjunction with another issue that regulation staff 
are dealing with for this landowner. 

 

Regulation Permit Applications 

As of today, there have been 255 permit applications in 2016.  The previous record was 239 in 2013.  We are 
setting a new LTVCA record. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 



 

36 
 

 

 

 

 



 

37 
 

 

 

 

 



 

38 
 

 

 

 

 


